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“…not a detailed history of the 
parish from 1875 to 1975; rather it 
is an accounting of major events 
of that century's parish life 

Chapter 1: Beginnings 
Chapter 2: Liturgy
Chapter 3: Traditions
Chapter 4: Education 
Chapter 5: Projections

and more importantly a reflection 
through anecdotes and photos of 
the flavor of that life."

Appendix 1: Parish Founding Charter 
Appendix 2: Pastors   
Appendix 3: Faithful Departed Buried in 

 the Cemetery 



Pastors of the Parish in Stones and Hills:



Pastors of the Parish since Stones and Hills:

Kieran Nolan:  Aug. 1972 – July 1978
Roger Klassen:  July 20, 1978 – June 1990
Robert Pierson:  July 1990 – June 1991
Simeon Thole:  July 1991 – June 1996
Jonathan Licari:  July 1996 – May 2001
Blane Wasnie:  August 2001 – June 2003
Eugene McGlothlin:  July 2003 – August 2010
Jerome Tupa: August 2010 – June 2012
Wilfred Theisen: interim:  June – August 2012
Nathanael Hauser:  Sept. 2012 – August 2014
Gregory Miller:  August 2014 – June 2019
Jerome Tupa: July 2019 – July 2021
Roger Klassen: July 2021 – July 2022
Bradley Jenniges, OSB, August 2022 –

Appendix 1: Parish Founding Charter 
Appendix 2: Pastors   
Appendix 3: Faithful Departed Buried in 

 the Cemetery 
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Subiaco



Saint Benedict’s monastery in 

Italy, Montecassino, was 

destroyed in WWII & then rebuilt 

to be exactly as it was!  



Montecassino







St. Augustine's Abbey, Canterbury, was where Christianity was brought to England.





Bavaria  

    Metten 

Germany

• 



Metten Monastery, Bavaria

founded in 766 by Charlemagne 
with monks from Montecassino



Bavaria  

    Metten 

Germany

• 



Familiar names: Weber, Maier, Reber, Ritter (& Wimmer!)



Fr. Boniface Wimmer left Metten to become a missionary to pioneer Catholics in the U.S. 

 

He brought 18 young men with him from Germany.



Initially they went to the new Pittsburgh diocese, where the bishop asked him to pastor a 

small parish 40 miles SE of Pittsburgh.

 He founded St. Vincent’s Monastery there in 1846.  

It was the first Benedictine monastery in the western hemisphere. 



Five years after St. Vincent’s was established there were 100 monks.

Within nine years, there were 200 – and it became an Abbey, with Boniface as its Abbot.

By the time of his death, he had founded ten Benedictine Abbeys in the U.S., 
 152 Roman Catholic Parishes, and many schools.



• Opposed his father’s support for 
Napoleon, who had closed 
monasteries and convents all over 
Europe

• Re-opened Catholic  monasteries, 
including Metten

• Supported the Church’s mission 
efforts in America

• Trivia: His 1810 wedding was the 
first Oktoberfest

King Ludwig I of Bavaria

financed Boniface Wimmer



King Ludwig I of Bavaria

financed Boniface Wimmer

Ludwig’s castle



Fr. Francis Pierz, missionary,
attracted German Catholics to Minnesota with his 

glowing descriptions of the land in the west 





"Forward, always forward, everywhere forward! 

We must not be held back by debts, bad years or 

by difficulties of the times. Man's adversity is 

God's opportunity."

  Abbot Boniface Wimmer

Bishop Joseph Cretin 

invited the Benedictines to Minnesota

(St. Paul “won the race” – Cretin’s 
response to Boniface Wimmer was 

the first one he received.)

Boniface sent five monks west.  





St. Cloud Priory on the Mississippi River, 1856,

the first structure built by the monks in Minnesota, 

drawn by one of the first students, Henry Emmel. 

“Early German settlers included…Joseph Emmel, carpenter 

and church painter…and Wolfgang Eich, carpenter.” 

  Worship & Work, p. 35
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Abbot Wimmer recruited Benedictines from St. Walburg Convent, Eichstätt, Bavaria   

The sisters’ route:

   In 1852 to St. Mary’s, Pennsylvania 

         In 1857 to St. Mary's Parish, St. Cloud 

    In 1863 to St. Joseph

St. Walburg’s, 2009



(continents not drawn to scale)

Route of the Sisters from Eichstätt, Germany to St. Joseph, Minnesota



NORTH STAR, the riverboat which brought the Benedictine sisters to St. Cloud.  

The riverboat was stranded on a sand bar two miles from St. Cloud.
  

After two days, on July 4, 1857, the sisters were taken ashore in small boats 

and accompanied to St. Cloud by its Benedictine Prior, Demetrius di Marogna.  

De Maronja

http://cdm.csbsju.edu/cdm4/item_viewer.php?CISOROOT=/SJAbbey&CISOPTR=3


The Sisters’ St. Cloud convent/church and school, St. Agnes Academy, 1860

St. Germain Street and 8th Avenue



The Sisters’ St. Cloud convent/church and school, St. Agnes Academy, 1860

St. Germain Street and 8th Avenue





The first convent at St. Joseph 



Saint Benedict’s Academy, 1882



An account by Fr. Bruno Riss (Riess):



St. John’s in the Indian Bush, 1864-1867



Chronology

1846: Boniface Wimmer leaves Metten, Germany

        

1856: Monks leave Pennsylvania; arrive in Saint Cloud

      

1858: Monks move to Saint Joseph because of land litigation

1859: Monks move back to Saint Cloud

1861: Civil War breaks out

1862: Indian uprising

      

1864: Saint Cloud land litigation goes against Saint John's; 

 Monks move to “Indianbush”

1866: Monks move to the shores of  “Lake Saint Louis”



Chronology

1846: Boniface Wimmer leaves Metten, Germany

1852: Sisters leave Eichstätt, Germany

1856: Monks leave Pennsylvania; arrive in Saint Cloud

1857: Sisters leave Pennsylvania; arrive in Saint Cloud

1858: Monks move to Saint Joseph because of land litigation

1859: Monks move back to Saint Cloud

1861: Civil War breaks out

1862: Indian uprising

1863: Sisters move to Saint Joseph (and some go to Kansas)

1864: Saint Cloud land litigation goes against Saint John's; 

 Monks move to “Indianbush”

1866: Monks move to the shores of  “Lake Saint Louis”

1875:  Saint John the Baptist Parish is founded



From its very beginnings, 
the history of St. John the 
Baptist Parish has been 

closely intertwined with 
that of the Benedictine 

monks of St. John's Abbey 
who came to Minnesota to 

minister to the spiritual 
needs of the German 
Catholic immigrant 

settlers.

Fr. Bruno Riess

Boniface Wimmer, 
Abbot







Diekmann House 
(Collegeville Station)



“This house was removed to St. Louis Lake and 
stood off to south side of the Stone House.”



from the 1874 Illustrated Historical Atlas of the State of Minnesota



1874 Atlas, close up
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In 1866, the year the 
Benedictine Monks 

moved from St. Cloud to 
Collegeville, a skilled 
carpenter and farmer, 

Peter Eich, also settled 
along the banks of 

Stumpf Lake. 



In 1866, the year the 
Benedictine Monks 

moved from St. Cloud to 
Collegeville, a skilled 
carpenter and farmer, 

Peter Eich, also settled 
along the banks of 

Stumpf Lake. 

1896 map



On December 12th, 1875, in 
response to a request from the 

22 settlers Mr. Eich had 
gathered together, Bishop 
Rupert Seidenbusch, OSB, 

former Abbot at St. John’s and 
the newly-appointed vicar 

apostolic of northern 
Minnesota, established the 

parish at Collegeville. 



Stones & Hills p. 158-159
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1896 plat 

book of

Stearns 

County



Frame House: 
built in 1864, 
moved in 1867 and 
razed in 1886



Frame House: 
built in 1864, 
moved in 1867 and 
razed in 1886

Stone House: 
built 1865-1866, 
demolished in 1893-94





The “Old Stone House,” 1865 (left), and the beginnings of the Quadrangle (right)  



The Old Stone House, damaged by 

fire, was torn down in 1893.  One 

year later, a tornado hit the same spot.

Hauling wood for fuel across the frozen Lake Sagatagan.  c. 1884.



The Abbey (right) 

and the Monastery 

(below) both 

maintained farms to 

feed themselves and 

their students…

…with help from 

some of the local 

people whom 

they hired.



Plasterers in the Quad, 1885

Lay workers were needed at Saint 

John’s almost from the start



…and

at Saint 

Ben’s, too

Sacred Heart Chapel construction, 1912



The farm buildings at St. Ben’s 

were mostly on the west side of the 

campus

                                      photo ca. 1940s





(1866)







1888
The original 
power plant –
And many cords 
of wood!





…and do you remember the wooden shrine in the Parish Center  hall?



Eich, Fruth, Obermueller, Fuchs …
Sam & Adam Philippi and John Schwinghammer 

are also listed in Scriptorium as 
builders of the Old Stone House

?



Alexius Hoffmann 
refers to Meier’s Bay 
in his book about St. 
John’s first 50 years

From the list of Founders of the Parish:



View of Lake Sagatagan from Observatory Hill, 1886, Worship & Work p.70g 

Meier’s / Meyer’s Bay Rupp’s?



Other text from The Record, 1901, 1904, and 1906, respectively

Rupp’s Store – the “Little Linneman’s”   (Stones & Hills p. 90)



Mr. Rupp’s carriage & 
popcorn cart, ca. 1909



Compiled in 2014, 2019-2020, and 2025
by Peggy Landwehr Roske, (retired) CSB+SJU Archivist.  

All rights reserved. 

To be continued…

Part 1:  January 26

Part 2:  April 27

Part 3:  October 12 



Resources used

The Archives of  Saint John’s Abbey, Saint John’s University, the College of 

Saint Benedict, and Saint Benedict’s Monastery

Stones and hills = Steine und Huegel: Reflections, St. John the Baptist Parish, 

1875-1975

“A Visual History of Saint Benedict’s and Saint John’s.  PowerPoint, August 

2004, assembled by Br. Alan Reed OSB for the Heritage Project of the Vocation 

Project with research by and assistance from the archivists of these communities, 

S. Ruth Boedigheimer OSB and Br. David Klingeman OSB.

Ascheman Collection: Centennial Collection of Photos of Saint John’s from the 

Abbey and University Archives

http://stjohnthebaptistparish.org/about-the-parish/history/ 

CSB/SJU website and assorted other sites and sources as noted on the slides

 

http://stjohnthebaptistparish.org/about-the-parish/history/
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